
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 17 January 2023 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple, C Hodson and R Lock 

 
Non elected Members:  Vacancy 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2022 (Pages 3 - 8) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 October 2022. 

 

3.   Action List  

 No outstanding actions.  

 

4.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered. 
 



 
 

 

5.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

 The Agenda as circulated be agreed.  

 

6.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

7.   Audit Reports Issued (Pages 9 - 14) 

 To receive report from the Devon Audit Partnership.  

 

8.   Counter Fraud and Resilience Assessment Report (Pages 15 - 24) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership. 

 

9.   Audit Process Report and Sector Update (Pages 25 - 38) 

 To receive a report from Grant Thornton.  
 

10.   Revision to Financial Procedures (Pages 39 - 42) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.  
 

11.   Forward Plan (Page 43) 

 To review the Forward Plan.  
 

12.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

13.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

14.   Housing Options Audit Report  

 To receive an update from the Head of Legal & Governance (and Monitoring Officer). 

 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 
 

Tuesday, 25 October 2022 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

 
 

 Councillors D Bushby, K Hepple and N Laws (substituting for C 

Hodson) 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

 
 A Davies - Grant Thornton  
 Middlemass - Devon Audit Partnership 

 
30.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

Apologies were received from Councillor Lock and from Councillor Hodson, 
Councillor Laws was present as a substitute for Councillor Hodson.  

 
31.    MINUTES  

 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 19th July 2022 were presented.  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Bushby and – 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
(Vote: Yes 3, Abstentions 1, No 0) 

 
32.    ACTION LIST  

 

Chair reviewed the action list with members. It was confirmed this action was 
complete -  Grant Thornton and the Section 151 Officer have been meeting more 

regularly since the last meeting.  
 
 

33.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

 
34.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  

 

The agenda as circulated was agreed. 

 
35.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

 
36.    AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED  

 

Paul Middlemass, Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager, provided members 
with a summary of the audits issued to date.   

 
There were 2 audit reports to note with the following assurances made: 
Reasonable Assurance Northam Burrows 

Reasonable Assurance Council Tax 
 

Northam Burrows 
It was explained that the audit looked at arrangements to manage the Burrows 
area, including the new management centre.   

 
The report noted there was scope to review parking charges, and a Health and 

Safety inspection of the new centre was advised.  
 
Members were also informed that a new management plan was needed - the plan 

was last reviewed in 2013. It was felt important in managing the increase in visitors 
alongside the impact of biodiversity and climate change.  

 
Council Tax 
It was confirmed DAP were content with the controls in place for the management 

of council tax, and collection rates were comparable with recent years.  
 

The DAP Manager highlighted the collection of uncollected council tax.  The report 
identified a need to increase emphasis on this area, and a dedicated recovery 
officer role had been being suggested. The DAP manager provided some context 

and explained it as fairly typical of other councils following the Pandemic. 
 

Active Torridge 
The DAP manager went on to highlight that the final audit report for Active Torridge, 
which had been agreed with Management and issued to the Board. It was 

explained that assurance had been provided on all the risk areas listed in the 
report. Recommendations from the report were also highlighted and it was 

explained that DAP had suggested these be tracked going forward.  
 
Following the update Members were asked for their questions. 

 
Following a question in relation to debt recovery the complexities of involving 

outside agencies in the collection of debt was explained, along with the current debt 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

recovery process and it’s complexities. It was confirmed that a business case for 
additional resource (member of staff) would go to SMT.  

 
During discussions it was highlighted that TDC would only retain 12 percent of the 

recovered funds and that collection rates were at around 98% for Council Tax.  
 
Following a query about the Council’s liability in relation to uncollected debt the 

Section 151 Officer explained the write off process. 
 

Members then asked for a comparison with other Local Authorities on the 
management of debt.  The DAP manager explained that Covid had a similar impact 
for other authorities, following the response to Government messaging on collection 

of debt and resourcing of additional grants. It was also highlighted by the Section 
151 Officer that the energy rebate created a heavy focus on the Council Tax teams 

and this had an impact on collection.  
 
Members duly noted the report.  

 
37.    INTERNAL AUDIT  - CHARTER AND STRATEGY  

 

DAP manager explained the purpose of the Charter and the Strategy and asked 
members for any questions. 

 
It was asked if DAP were managing to achieve 90% of audits as stated. The DAP 

manager stated this was a standard annual target level, which is typically met most 
years.  
 

Members duly noted the report.  
 

38.    ANNUAL REPORT  
 

Chair introduced Andrew Davies, Engagement Manager at Grant Thornton, who 

updated members on the progress of the 2020-2021 audit. It was confirmed that 
the opinion would be signed by Julie Masci following the meeting and after the 

presentation of the annual report Grant Thornton would be able to certify the audit 
as closed.  
 

The Engagement Manager for Grant Thornton clarified that the report related to the 
audit of the 2021 financial year.  

 
The annual report was then summarised for members, and the different scales of 
recommendation and the potential audit outcomes were explained.  The 

Engagement Manager ran through the executive summary with members, providing 
some of the headlines.  It was confirmed there were no statutory or key 

recommendations for the Council, only improvement recommendations. 
 
Members were asked for the questions. 

 
Members asked about the discussion process following Grant Thornton 

recommendations. The Engagement Manager for Grant Thornton explained how 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

managers could query recommendations and confirmed that sometimes the report 
would be updated as a result. An example from the report was referred to to 

provide members with context of the discussions that take place.  
  

Members discussed the recommendation regarding gifts and hospitality process 
and queried the process, which was explained by the Section 151 Officer.  It was 
confirmed that this process was for Officers and Members.  

 
Members duly noted the report 

 
 

39.    2021/22 AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT  
 

The Engagement Manager for Grant Thornton explained that the report related to 

the 2021-22 audit and members were referred to the headline areas (page 69-70 of 
the agenda) and given an update on progress.  
 

Members were directed to page 71 of the agenda and it was explained that the list 
of outstanding areas had decreased since the writing of the report.  The remaining 

outstanding areas were the receipt of the Letter of Assurance from the Devon 
Pension Fund Auditor and property, plant and equipment valuations – brief updates 
were provided to members on both the outstanding areas.   

 
It was confirmed that subject to the completion of this work Grant Thornton aimed 

to issue an unqualified opinion ahead of the 30th November deadline. It was 
requested that Grant Thornton’s thanks to the Finance Team be recorded.  
 

It was explained that the Value for Money work was still ongoing, and the members 
were directed to the findings on page 86 of the agenda – specifically Active 

Torridge.  The Engagement Manager provided a further update on this audit work 
and advised members that Grant Thornton have now concluded that there was no 
longer a significant risk in these arrangements.  

 
In terms of the key findings members were advised there were no major issues to 

bring to their attention. The Engagement Manager stated that this was a clean audit 
and a good set of financial statements.  
 

Members were asked if they had questions on the detail of the report.  
 

Members expressed their thanks to Grant Thornton and the Finance team for their 
work on this audit.  The Section 151 Officer credited the experienced and long-
standing team finance team.  

 
Following a query regarding the mechanisms for auditing plant equipment 

valuations the Section 151 Officer confirmed that there was a depreciation policy in 
place. This policy and how it relates to TDC equipment and how risk was assessed 
was explained. The Engagement Manager also provided members with a summary 

of the process for auditing this area / these figures.  
 

Members duly noted the report.  

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

 
40.    LETTER OF REPRESENTATION  

 

The Section 151 Officer explained the function of the letter to members and 

confirmed Councillor Hackett and the Section 151 Officer would sign the letter for 
Grant Thornton at the end of the meeting.  
 

Members duly noted the letter 
 

41.    UPDATE ON PSSA APPOINTMENT PROCESS FOR EXTERNAL AUDIT OF 
ACCOUNTS FROM 2023/24  
 

The Section 151 Officer introduced the report and explained that the purpose was 
to update members on the progress in appointing external auditors for the period 

2023/24 – 2027/28. 
 
Members were provided with some background to the procurement process and 

advised of section 2 of the report, which provided an indication on the prices to 
expect when the contract renews.  

 
It was explained that the number of Audit Firms completing external audits had now 
expanded and following the writing of the report it had been confirmed that Bishop 

Fleming were allocated as TDC auditors for 2023/24.  
 

Members were advised of the appeal process and the Section 151 Officer 
confirmed he would be writing to Public Sector Audit Appointment Committee to 
confirm acceptance of Bishop Fleming as auditors from 2023-24.   

 
Members duly noted the report.  

 
42.    FORWARD PLAN  

 

Chair reviewed the Forward Plan with members and the following was agreed:  
 

 The Engagement Manager for Grant Thornton confirmed that the External 
Audit plan item could remain on the April agenda.  

 DAP Manager advised there would be an Annual Fraud report for January 

date on the forward plan.  
 

Members noted the Forward Plan.  
 

43.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

The Chair moved: 

 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 

10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

44.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Bushby and –  
 

Resolved: 
 
That the meeting move into Part II.  

 
(Vote: for, unanimous.) 

 
45.    PRESENTATION - UPDATE OF CORPORATE RISK REGISTER  

 

Members were provided with a presentation from the Section 151 Officer covering 
the function of Corporate Risk Register and the work of TDC to manage / mitigate 

identified risks within the organisation.  
 

Following a brief discussion regarding future agenda items it was requested that 

the IT team attend the next committee meeting in relation to Cyber Security.  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Bushby and –  
 
Resolved: 

 
That the meeting come out of Part II. 

 
(Vote: for, unanimous.) 
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.05 pm and closed at 3.22 pm 
 
 

 
 

Page 8



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Audit Partnership 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: 17 January 2023   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the internal audit 
reports issued since the last Audit and Governance Committee to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.  
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of internal audit 
reports issued. This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to 
the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the internal audit report upon release, they are encouraged 
to raise any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary 
report gives an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final internal audit reports issued to date that have not been previously 
reported to the Committee.  
 

2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are three audit reports to note: 
 

 NNDR 

 Housing Options 

 Risk Management 
 
Our Annual Fraud Assessment is presented as a separate agenda item.  

 

  
  

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

 

Equality/Diversity 
None. 
 
Risk Management 

The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks 
faced by the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved 
by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include ‘opportunity’ findings, which are suggested courses of action 
perceived to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management 
during the draft audit stage. 
 
Reporting of progress to implement internal audit actions to the Audit & Governance Committee 
is the responsibility of the Finance Director / S151. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit Committee terms of reference and the Audit Procedures 
Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits 
Reports contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits 
that have been awarded each level: 
 
Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Risk Management 

National Non Domestic Rates 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

Housing Options 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, 
suggestions or proposals relating to the internal audits in this report. It is also asked to note the 
Audit Charter and Strategy. 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee 
Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
Paul Middlemass – DAP Audit Manager 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 11



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports not previously reported to Committee 

 

National Non-Domestic Rates 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of management actions made / agreed:  2 Medium and 2 Low actions were agreed  
 
Summary   

The NNDR team are effective in their duties.  We found the application of discounts and reliefs to 
be accurately applied and valuation agency office changes were timely with accurate reconciliation 
with the NNDR database.  Separation of duties was in place for refunds. Statutory returns were 
appropriately signed off and submitted to the appropriate governing body by the deadline.  Raising 
of bills is timely and there is a good process for reconciling the Academy system to the main 
accounting system.  System access to make changes to parameters are adequately restricted.  
However, the team has been restricted in the amount of chasing of outstanding monies, due to 
focus on Covid grants, and more recently the energy rebate scheme. 

Collection rates for 2021/22 have improved to 98.26%, compared to 95.9% for 2020/21. However, 
the reduced emphasis on chasing outstanding monies for business rates has reflected in increased 
levels of arrears, which have increased in the last few years.   

 

The graph shows the amount of arrears 
outstanding for each year.   

2022/23 net rates payable are 
£11,075,000.  We have been advised 
that around 66% of the in-year bills has 
been collected.  The current outstanding 
amount up to October 2022 is 
£4,015,577.24. 

The level of write offs for 2021/22 was: 
£248.05. 

We have made recommendations to 
improve management in this area. 

 

Risk Management 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of management actions made / agreed:  5 Medium, 4 Low actions.   
 

Summary 

The culture on risk at TDC is generally good, with senior managers aware and alert to upcoming 
and current risks, especially around Financial Planning and Management. Risks are discussed in 
both Senior Management Team Meetings and Operational Management Team meetings and 
discussed at Audit & Governance Committee meetings. We consider it would good practice for Full 
Council / Community and Resources Committee to periodically discuss the Corporate Risk 
Register to allow member input and discussion of the risks and action to mitigate them.  

Page 12



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

A Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is maintained and compared to some councils, comprises a 
relatively small number of risk (9) which is good practice. The current risks on the register look 
appropriate to us, although we think the Cyber Security risk assessment of 6 is too low given the 
Cyber Threat Landscape. We note the significant work being undertaken by the S151 officer to 
deal with the current risk related to council finances and financial sustainability. Review of the 
September 2022 CRR indicated that not all the detail on every risk was current or up to date, for 
instance many of the New Impacts columns did not appear up to date. After our fieldwork, a Risk 
Management Group was held and the CRR updated. According to the Constitution, the Risk 
Management Group has responsibility for maintaining the risk register. We note this group appears 
to be meeting every six months, rather than every quarter. As the group plays an important role in 
reviewing and escalating risks, there is a need for more frequent meetings.  

Service area business planning was evidenced well with each area clearly detailing their goals and 
vision in April for the year ahead. As part of the Business Plan each service area completes a risk 
register. These are discussed and agreed by senior management at that time. However, there is 
no process to ensure Service risks are reviewed and updated during the year as required in the 
Constitution (4.1.2). Recognising that through year review is the ideal, we suggest a mid-year 
review of risk registers would be beneficial. A Business Continuity Plan is also held alongside 
Service Plans but were not all current based on those we reviewed. We will cover this in more 
detail in our audit on Business Continuity later this year.    

The project manager for Major Projects displayed a good awareness of the importance of risk 
management to support delivery of projects to time, quality, and cost. A variety of different formats 
of risk registers were actively managed as required for the relevant project. It would be beneficial to 
include opportunities considered and taken forward on these risk registers.  

The council includes fraud risks on its Risk Map, but it does not have a specific risk register on 
those risks. Some District Councils are currently mapping out their fraud risks in their high-risk 
areas. We will discuss how Torridge can develop its understanding of these risks when we 
undertake our annual Fraud Assessment in December 2022.  

There is no mention of Opportunity Management in the Risk Management Strategy and Policy. The 
council has various ways to progress opportunities, such as raising a Project Initiation Document, 
and staff can highlight proposals to managers. We suggest the council may benefit from more 
emphasis on capturing and taking forward opportunities and to recognise this in the Risk Strategy 
and Policy.         

Review of some of the councils’ strategies indicate that not all clearly detail the risks involved. The 
Cyber Security (in draft) and Climate Action Plan are two which have good mention of risk to 
delivery.  

We note that risk management training has not been provided to officers for some years. This 
training would help increase in knowledge and skills in risk management and training around this 
area. We also made this recommendation in our last audit report. 

 

Housing Options 

Overall Assurance Level – Limited 

No of management actions made / agreed: 3 High, 11 Medium, 1 Low. 

Summary 

We consider that the Housing Options team is placing homeless people in accordance with 
legislation and the policy.  However, expenditure on temporary accommodation has significantly 
exceeded the budget. As the numbers of households in temporary accommodation increases, the 
management of this area has become less effective and there are inefficiencies in processes.  
There is a homelessness Strategy dated 2020-25 which outlines the current challenges.  There is 

Page 13



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

6 
 

also an action plan for 2022/23, but this action plan has not been updated to reflect progress so far 
this year. The strategy should be reviewed to ensure it reflects the current risks and challenges 
faced by the team. The council will also need to continue to look at options to reduce expenditure 
in this area. A reflection of the above has resulted in the limited assurance opinion in this area. We 
have made recommendations to improve management of this area.   

We reviewed the budget and actual figures for temporary accommodation back to April 2020.  
Actual expenditure in 2020/21 was in line with the budget of £200k.  However, expenditure for 
2021/22 went to £400k. For the current financial year, expenditure stands at £800k at the end of 
October compared to the full year budget of £200k.  This is partly a factor in the increased number 
of households in temporary accommodation.  In the last 10 years the average number of 
households have risen from 7 in 2010, to 62 at the end of March 2022.  During 2021/22 the 
number of households in TA rose by 106.66%. We understand that there are currently 66 
households in temporary accommodation, and the peak in numbers was over 70. 

The Council own three hostels and one house which provides housing for those requiring TA, 
another hostel is currently being sourced.  The Council also utilises 13 PSLs (private sector 
landlord); these are properties which the Council leases from private landlords.  This is a cheaper 
option than spot purchasing and provides some consistency in expenditure.  Both these forms of 
accommodation are cheaper than spot purchases (B&B) and are not open to spikes in expenditure 
during the height of summer where a premium is charged for accommodation, especially in popular 
tourist areas. It is considered that spot purchasing of temporary accommodation has the biggest 
impact on budget. 

We acknowledge that there is a housing crisis which has had a detrimental effect in this situation.  
Private rented supply is in demand and rents are increasing, social housing is a more affordable 
option, but demand far exceeds supply and so trying to find suitable/affordable long-term 
accommodation for those in TA is a challenge.  This has resulted in those in TA being there for 
longer periods of time, which is causing the increase in need and expenditure. In this review we 
have sought to highlight work undertaken by other local councils to manage this problem.  

Management of temporary accommodation, monitoring of accounts for non-payment of top-ups 
etc., grants and loans, etc. is managed on various spreadsheets incorporating data from Host 
Access, Cedar and Jigsaw.  When the number of households in temporary accommodation were 
much lower, use of a spreadsheets to manage processes, in particular temporary accommodation, 
may have been manageable. With the increase in numbers use of a spreadsheets results in 
inefficiencies in the process.  A designated system with a workflow attached would create leaner 
processes and ensure effectiveness of the team.  Top-ups are currently charged to those in hostels 
and PSLs (private sector landlords), this could be extended to those in spot purchased 
accommodation.  A designated system should create capacity to manage this process.  Some 
processes are carried out by a single member of staff this reduces resilience of the team.  

Quality of information submitted to benefits has been poor with errors in information being 
identified on a regular basis, this has been ongoing.  More recently, Benefits have noticed that 
submission of data is not always timely with documentation arriving out of sequence.  Errors in 
information has an impact on the amount claimed as subsidy. 

 
 

Page 14



  

Page | 1 

OFFICIAL:SENSITIVE 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Torridge District Council    
 
Devon Audit Partnership   
 
Counter Fraud  
Resilience and 
Assessment Report    
 
 
December 2022 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



  

Page | 2 

 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The following is the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Counter Fraud Services Team Report and 
Update 22/23. It outlines the ever-increasing fraud threats affecting all areas of public spending 

and the responses expected from Torridge District Council. Our aim is to support Torridge 
District Council in its continued efforts to ensure that appropriate processes are in place. This 
includes good governance processes, acknowledging the threats posed by fraud, preventing 

and pursuing those who would look to commit fraud and providing assurance that the Council, 
the public and the wider public purse are being protected from fraud wherever possible.  

 
1.2 The Counter Fraud Services Team within Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) continues to support 

and facilitate the development of the Council‟s Counter Fraud processes and capability, which 

improves its resilience to fraud and related offences. 
 

2. Fraud response / resilience assessment.  
 

2.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) reports that local 

authorities have achieved success by taking a structured response to fraud and that they now 
need to respond to an ever-increasing fraud threat, and further develop and enhance their 

counter fraud response by ensuring that it is comprehensive and effective and focused on the 
key changes that will make the most difference.  
 

2.2 A local authority is self-regulating in respect of counter fraud. It should aim to show that it 
undertakes realistic self-assessment and has identified and understands the major risks it 

faces. It should acknowledge the problems and put in place plans which can demonstrate that 
it is taking action with visible outcomes. It should aim to create a transparent process and 
report the results to the corporate management team and those charged with governance. 

 
2.3 The table in Appendix 1 shows the expected response from a local authority, and our 

assessment of Torridge‟s arrangements against expectations. It is clear that the Council 
complies in almost all areas of Counter Fraud best practice. However further work in Joining up 
the „Fraud Risk Management‟ process and Counter Fraud knowledge between DAP and TDC 

will add further value to the Counter Fraud Activity.  
 

 

3 National Fraud Initiative  
 

3.1 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is an exercise run and reported on by the Cabinet Office;  
matches electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to prevent and 
detect fraud and error. 
  

3.2 Devon Audit Partnership acts as the point of contact between the Cabinet Office and the 

Council in matters relating to the National Fraud Initiative, this being a mandatory Biannual 
exercise in fraud prevention and detection. 

 

3.3 The Bi Annual National Exercise for 22/23 has now started and data will be being uploaded to 
the Cabinet Office for inclusion in the exercise. It is anticipated that all matches will be returned 

for checking in Jan / Feb 2023.   
 

3.4 Departments that complete the returned matches show that they are actively involved reducing 

fraud risk as well making sure that wherever possible their data management is compliant with 
the Data Protection Act 2018 by ensuring -   

 

 Data minimisation by ensuring that Torridge only holds data that is required. 

Page 16

https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/
https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/our-services/counter-fraud/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-fraud-initiative-reports
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/cabinet-office


 

Page 3 of 10 

 

 

 Accuracy by ensuring that the data held is as accurate as it can reasonably be 

expected to be. 

 Data retention periods, showing that data is not being held longer than is necessary 

for its intended use.  

 
3.5  In the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) survey in 2019, the 

most common types of fraud faced by all Councils in England and Wales were identified as per 
the graphic below, it remains imperative that the Council continues to maximise counter fraud 
activity in these areas to ensure the minimisation of any loss to fraud. 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
   

 
 

4 Information for Committee 
 

4.1 Local Authorities are far from immune to fraud and its related offences. It is also clear that 
fraud activity is and has been increasing for some time. Local Authority defences must keep 

pace with developments or face increasing losses at a time when every penny counts. Every 
pound saved fighting fraud is a pound that can go back into front line services. Below are some 
of the most recent reports into the scale of fraud faced by the country and the respective views 

of those who produce them.  
     

4.2 Creation of the Public Sector Fraud Authority (Aug 2022) - The Public Sector Fraud 

Authority is the UK government‟s Centre of Expertise for the management of fraud (and 
associated error) against the public sector. It leads the Government‟s Counter Fraud Function. 

 
4.3 The House of Commons Justice Committee Report (Oct 2022) - Fraud and the Justice 

System is a wide ranging report setting out its recommendations for a new approach to, as the 
report puts it, 'an epidemic of fraud cases in England and Wales'. The scale is evident from the 
most recent Office of National Statistics report. 

 
4.4 The House of Lords Report (Nov 2022) - How do we break the fraud chain? Highlights that 

Fraud is the most common crime in this country today. An adult aged 16 or over in England 
and Wales is more likely to become a victim of fraud than any other individual crime type. 

 
5 Conclusion 

 

5.1 Torridge District Councils Counter Fraud resilience continues to improve, moving towards an 
ever-stronger assurance position. The benchmarking against best practice exercise is 
encouraging and supports the opinion that the Council is committed to reducing fraud losses to 

Page 17

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s137851/Annex%201%20-%20CIPFA%20Fraud%20and%20Corruption%20Tracker%20Summary%20Report%202019.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-fraud-authority-mandate
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-fraud-authority-mandate
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/30328/documents/175363/default/
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/30328/documents/175363/default/
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fukparliament.shorthandstories.com%2Fbreaking-fraud-chain-committee-report%2Findex.html%23article&data=05%7C01%7Cken.johnson%40devon.gov.uk%7Cdbf7e3ab0277421237f408dac973e06f%7C8da13783cb68443fbb4b997f77fd5bfb%7C0%7C0%7C638043798271735697%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=D52oArLT87lPUscqPdEKQJWrqeXzEfStHNMpObaYTgc%3D&reserved=0


 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 

the minimum level possible. However constant vigilance and flexibility are required to ensure 
that wherever possible every pound of the public purse is protected and spent on those in 

genuine need of the Councils services.   
 

5.2 The word unprecedented has been used many times over the past three years as a result of 
circumstances beyond Local Authority control, the current financial pressures on Councils and 
the people they serve remain unprecedented and the effects should not be underestimated. 

Financial pressure is a driver for fraud, and as such all Council‟s should, wherever possible 
look to increase their fraud resilience. It is noteworthy that Torridge is committed to building 

further resilience.   
 
 

 
 

 
  

Ken Johnson 
Counter Fraud Services Manager 

 
Tony Rose 

Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of Plymouth, Torbay, Devon, Mid Devon,  North 
Devon, Torridge, South Hams and West Devon councils and Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority.  We aim to be recognised as a 
high-quality assurance service provider in the public sector.   

 
We w ork with our partners by providing a professional assurance services that w ill assist them in meeting their challenges, managing their risks 
and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our w ork we are required to comply w ith the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along w ith other 
best practice and professional standards.   

 
The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if  you have any comments or suggestions on our 
service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership w ould be pleased to receive them at tony.d.rose@devon.gov. 
 

Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause - This report is protectively marked in accordance with the Government Security Classif ications. It is 
accepted that issues raised may w ell need to be discussed with other off icers within the Council, the report itself should only be 
copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of the organisation in line w ith the organisation‟s disclosure policies.  

This report is prepared for the organisation‟s use.  We can take no responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it. 

 

 
 
 
 

(Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2020)

Page 18



 

Page 5 of 10 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

Page 6 of 10 

 

 

Appendix 1 

Counter Fraud resilience and Best Practice Checklist 

CIPFA / CIFAS expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption. 

Torridge current position and action 

1. The local authority has made a proper assessment 

of its fraud and corruption risks, has an action plan 
to deal with them and regularly reports to its senior 
Board and its members. 

The Authority annually prepares a Fraud and Corruption risk 

register. This identifies the risks and the controls in place to 
address these risks. 

This is considered by the Senior Management Team. 

The Corporate Risk Register, which incorporates the risk for 
fraud, is taken to the Audit & Governance Committee. 

2. The local authority has undertaken a fraud risk 
assessment against the risks and has also 

undertaken horizon scanning of future potential 
fraud and corruption risks. This assessment 
includes the understanding of the harm that fraud 
may do in the community 

The fraud risks to the Authority are assessed at least annually 
and are updated as and when new risks arise. 

In terms of horizon scanning, internal audit (DAP) provide 

updates on emerging fraud risks and the Devon Audit Group 
also helps to inform officers of locally developing issues. 

A local network of key contacts also helps to identify trends 
and developments. 

3. There is an annual report to the audit committee, 
or equivalent detailed assessment.   

Each year a report is taken to the Audit & Governance 
Committee, reporting the results of a self-assessment against 
the relevant updated and current requirements in line with 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and corruption. 

This will now involve the Counter Fraud Services 
Manager at DAP 

4. The relevant portfolio holder has been briefed on 
the fraud risks and mitigation 

The Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee will be 
briefed on fraud risks and the mitigations thereof. 

5. The audit committee supports counter fraud work 
and challenges the level of activity to ensure it is 
appropriate in terms of fraud risk and resources. 

The Audit & Governance Committee supports all officers in 
their work to prevent, detect and investigate fraud and 
corruption.  

Officers from partner organisations (e.g. Devon Audit 
Partnership) will be used to provide specialist skills and 
additional resources as and when required. 

6. There is a counter fraud and corruption strategy 

applying to all aspects of the local authority’s 
business which has been communicated throughout 
the local authority and acknowledged by those 
charged with governance.  

The Authority has in place an Anti-Fraud, Corruption Bribery 

Policy, and Strategy.  This was updated in October 2019, with 
next review scheduled for February 2022/23 or as required. 
The Policy and Strategy will be taken to, and approved by, 
the Audit & Governance Committee. 

It is recommended that this Policy and Strategy is 
updated by an Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist.    

7. The local authority has arrangements in place that 
are designed to promote and ensure probity and 
propriety in the conduct of its business. 

Section 5 of the Strategy sets out various policy statements 
that cover staff, members, partner organisations and 
members of the public, which ensure probity and propriety are 
in place. 

However, no system or process can ever be 100% secure, 

and so employee diligence is always needed, and this 
referred to in section 6 “deterrence and prevention”. 

The Council includes anti-bribery clauses in contracts with 
third parties and agents. 

As detailed in 6 the Policy and Strategy are due to be 
updated. 

8. The risks of fraud and corruption are specifically 

considered in the local authority’s overall risk 
management process. 

A specific fraud and corruption risk entry is recorded in the 
risk register.  

9. Counter fraud staff are consulted to fraud-proof 
new policies, strategies and initiatives across 
departments, and this is reported upon to committee. 

The Authority does not have a dedicated “counter fraud” team 
and so this role is undertaken by a range of officers, including 
the Service Improvement Officer and Internal Audit (DAP). 

New policies and strategies are always considered in the light 

Page 20

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/media/23851/Anti-Fraud-Corruption-Bribery-Strategy/pdf/Anti_Fraud__Corruption___Bribery_Strategy_20191.pdf?m=637729164383470000
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/media/23851/Anti-Fraud-Corruption-Bribery-Strategy/pdf/Anti_Fraud__Corruption___Bribery_Strategy_20191.pdf?m=637729164383470000


 

Page 7 of 10 

 

 

CIPFA / CIFAS expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption. 

Torridge current position and action 

of possible fraud and corruption and are designed to limit 
such exposure. 

Access to the Counter Fraud Services Manager and 
Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist investigators at DAP 
will further strengthen this position.  

10. Successful cases of proven fraud/corruption are 
routinely publicised to raise awareness.  

Successful cases of proven fraud / corruption are reported in 
the local paper. 

In addition, such cases will be referred to in the internal 
newsletter and the Members Bulletin. 

11. The local authority has put in place arrangements 

to prevent and detect fraud and corruption and a 
mechanism for ensuring that this is effective and is 
reported to committee.  

All systems are designed to prevent fraud occurring. The 
diligence of management and staff is also key in this. 

A risk assessment is undertaken of the key risks of fraud, and 
the controls in place to prevent this taking place. 

The annual Internal Audit plan is prepared taking in to 
account risks, which include fraud risks. Internal audit will 
provide assessment on the effectiveness of controls, and test 

controls to ensure that they are being complied with in 
practice. 

The Audit and Governance Committee is provided reports on 
risk, and the results of Internal Audit, and this, combined with 

management assessment of controls, is summarised in the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

The Strategy at 5.9 refers to “any major instances of fraud 
being reported to the next Audit & Governance Committee….” 

12. The local authority has put in place arrangements 
for monitoring compliance with standards of conduct 

across the local authority covering:  

 

– codes of conduct including behaviour for counter 
fraud, anti-bribery and corruption  

The Strategy, section 6.9 to 6.14 refers to the code of conduct 
for staff and at 6.15 to 6.17 the code of conduct for members. 
As expected, there is a member‟s code of conduct that was 

prepared in August 2018. 
– register of interests  A register of member interests is maintained against each 

member and is publicly available on the Councils internet 
pages. 

 
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-of-Conduct-
and-Register-of-Members-Interests 

 
– register of gifts and hospitality.  A register of gifts and hospitality is maintained, and this is 

published on line. 
 

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gi fts-and-
Hospitality-Register 
 

13. The local authority undertakes recruitment 

vetting of staff prior to employment by risk 
assessing posts and undertaking the checks 
recommended in FFCL 2020 to prevent potentially 
dishonest employees from being appointed.  

TDC have two policies; „recruitment‟ and „employment 

screening‟ which cover the employee vetting.  All offers of 

employment are subject to satisfactory pre-employment 

checks.   

Mandatory checks include: - 

 References  

 Verification of employment history Verification of 

professional qualifications and memberships  

 Verification of ID, nationality and immigration status 

Page 21

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-of-Conduct-and-Register-of-Members-Interests
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-of-Conduct-and-Register-of-Members-Interests
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register


 

Page 8 of 10 

 

 

CIPFA / CIFAS expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption. 

Torridge current position and action 

and right to work in the UK  

 Medical clearance 

Some posts require additional checks including 

 DBS 

 Credit checks 

Checks on company directorships held, resigned, or 

disqualified from (not routinely undertaken) 

14. Members and staff are aware of the need to make 

appropriate disclosures of gifts, hospitality and 
business. This is checked by auditors and reported 
to committee.  

At the start of each meeting a declaration of interests is 
requested. 

The Service Improvement Officer will remind all officers and 
members of the need to declare all offers of gifts and 
hospitality. Such a reminder is made in the internal 
newsletter, around Christmas time each year. 

15. There is a programme of work to ensure a strong 

counter fraud culture across all departments and 
delivery agents led by counter fraud experts.  

There is an annual calendar that supports the staff newsletter 

to ensure that fraud awareness updates are provided at least 
biannually, whistleblowing reminders are provided biannually, 
and gift & hospitality reminders are provided yearly. 

As previously stated, the Council now also has access to 
an Accredited Counter Fraud Manager and Accredited 

Counter Fraud Specialists at DAP, which can be utilised 
as and when required.  

16. There is an independent whistle-blowing policy 
which is monitored for take-up and can show that 
suspicions have been acted upon without internal 

pressure. 

A separate whistleblowing policy is in place and was updated 
January 2020. 
This includes the Policy, employee guide and Manager‟s 

guide. 
All such alerts and reports will be monitored for intelligence 
purposes. 

17. Contractors and third parties sign up to the 

whistle-blowing policy and there is evidence of this. 
There should be no discrimination against whistle -
blowers. 

At present the whistleblowing policy applies to all Council 

workers, including elected and co-opted Members, 
employees, staff of Council contractors, suppliers of goods 
and services and agency staff. 

18. Fraud resources are assessed proportionately to 
the risk the local authority faces and are adequately 
resourced. 

Since the transfer of benefits counter fraud staff to 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), fraud resources 
have been limited. 

However, the internal audit provider (DAP) recently expanded 
its service provision by taking on the Counter Fraud Team, 
previously working solely at Plymouth. The team has fully 

trained and qualified fraud investigators. The Authority will 
look to “call off” resources as and when the need arises.  

19. There is an annual fraud plan which is agreed by 

committee and reflects resources mapped to risks 
and arrangements for reporting outcomes. This plan 
covers all areas of the local authority’s business and 

includes activities undertaken by contractors and 
third parties or voluntary sector activities. 

There is no annual fraud plan as such. 

However, there are a range of “work programmes” that are 

prepared each year, including actions arising for the Annual 
Governance Review process, Risk Management and Internal 
Audit. 

The elements of each of these various plans enables senior 

management to be assured that suitable resources are being 
allocated to prevent, detect and investigate fraud. 

However, it should be noted that the current level of referrals 
of fraud and corruption are limited. 

20. Statistics are kept and reported by the fraud team 
which cover all areas of activity and outcomes.  

The Strategic Improvement Officer, in conjunction with the 
S151 officer, will maintain a record of referrals. 

However, and as referred to above, there is no separate fraud 

Page 22



 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 

CIPFA / CIFAS expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption. 

Torridge current position and action 

team. 

21. Fraud officers have unfettered access to 
premises and documents for the purposes of 
counter fraud investigation.  

As stated above there are no dedicated “fraud officers” within 
the Council.  

However, in such instances then lawful access would be 

granted. For example, if DAP were asked to investigate using 
their Counter Fraud Team, then “full access” would be 
granted as per the service level agreement already in 

place and in accordance with Schedule 2 Part 1 2(1) of 
the Data Protection Act 2018 

22. There is a programme to publicise fraud and 
corruption cases internally and externally which is 
positive and endorsed by the council’s 
communication team.  

Not a programme as such, but cases will be publicised in the 
local newspaper and via the internal newsletter and the 
Members bulletin. 

23. All allegations of fraud and corruption are risk 
assessed.  

Each referral or suspicion will be “risk assessed” before 

embarking upon a course of action proportionate to the issue 
and in line with Torridge‟s “zero tolerance” policy.  

24. The fraud and corruption response plan covers 
all areas of counter fraud work:  

 Prevention 

 Detection 

 Investigation 

 Sanctions 

 Redress 

As mentioned above, there is no response plan as such, 
however the Strategy ensures that each of these elements is 
considered. 

Recommend that the Counter Fraud Services Manager at 
DAP, undertakes the review and writing of the next 
Strategy and Response Plan to ensure that each of these 

areas is fully covered.   

25. The fraud response plan is linked to the audit 

plan and is communicated to senior management 
and members.  

The Counter Fraud Manager and the Audit Manager at 

DAP can ensure that the plans are linked and 
communicated to senior management and members.  

26. Asset recovery and civil recovery is considered 
in all cases. 

Currently Section 7.9 to 7.12 of the Strategy deal with 
Sanctions and Redress. 

27. There is a zero-tolerance approach to fraud and 
corruption which is always reported to committee. 

Yes - there is a “zero tolerance approach to fraud, endorsed 
by the Audit & Governance Committee.  

Instances of fraud and corruption are reported to the Audit & 
Governance Committee. Due to the sensitive nature of some 
instances, this may be in summary form. 

28. There is a programme of proactive counter fraud 
work which covers risks identified in assessment.  

Proactive counter fraud work is delivered in a variety of ways 
each year. Some examples of how this is achieved include: - 

 Participation in the bi-annual National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI) 

 Elements of internal audit work focused on controls that 
may be more susceptible to fraud risk 

 Work by Service Managers – such as Council Tax Single 
Persons Discount review 

 

29. The fraud team works jointly with other 

enforcement agencies and encourages a corporate 
approach and co-location of enforcement activity.  

There is no “fraud team” as such, however early referral to 

the Police or other agencies will be considered as part of the 
risk assessment for each referral. 

30. The local authority shares data across its own 
departments and between other enforcement 
agencies.  

The main external data sharing is via the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI). Where appropriate lawful sharing of data 
will be permitted in accordance with Schedule 2 Part 1 
2(1) of the Data Protection Act 2018 

31. Prevention measures and projects are 
undertaken using data analytics where possible.  

Such examples include making good use of  

Page 23



 

Page 10 of 10 

 

 

CIPFA / CIFAS expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption. 

Torridge current position and action 

 the NFI 

 Council Tax - Single persons discount review 

32. The local authority actively takes part in the 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and promptly takes 
action arising from it.  

Data is submitted every two years, with “matches” then 
investigated in accordance with the scoring of the match (e.g. 

higher scored matches reviewed first, lowest reviewed last 
and in accordance with resources available). 

33. There are professionally trained and accredited 

staff for counter fraud work. If auditors undertake 
counter fraud work they too must be trained in this 
area.  

As mentioned earlier, the Authority does not have an in-house 

counter fraud team. However, the Authority has access to, 
and will make use of, Counter Fraud Specialists as and when 
the need arises. 

For example, the Counter Fraud Team of DAP are available 
to assist as and when required.  

34. The counter fraud team has adequate knowledge 

in all areas of the local authority or is trained in these 
areas.  

As above 

The Counter Fraud Team at DAP are fully trained and 

accredited Counter Fraud Specialists and have dealt with 
and prosecuted hundreds of cases for Councils in the 
region. 

35. The counter fraud team has access (through 
partnership/other local authorities/or funds to buy in) 

to specialist staff for:  

 Surveillance 

 Computer forensics 

 Asset recovery 

 Financial investigations. 

As above 
The Counter Fraud Team and wider Devon Audit 

Partnership Team have access to specialist staff that can 
fully and professionally fulfil the legal requirements 
under all of the disciplines in this section. (Should the 

Council wish to buy in these skills as and when required) 

36. Weaknesses revealed by instances of proven 
fraud and corruption are scrutinised carefully and 

fed back to departments to fraud proof systems. 

The Authority is committed to ongoing and continual 
improvement. Any weaknesses identified will be addressed 

wherever possible, although it should be noted that no system 
can ever be considered 100% free from the risk of fraud. 

37. New Counter Fraud Training is available for all 
staff and members to ensure that they are up to date 

with relevant threats and are able to identify and 
report fraud appropriately.  
Fraud awareness is specifically important for those 

involved in the Procurement process as highlighted 
in Review into the risks of fraud and corruption in 
local government procurement 

There is no formal training in place, however Fraud 
Awareness is highlighted annually via the Staff newsletter 

(which is also circulated to elected members) 
Recommend - fraud awareness sessions are arranged for 
those in the highest risk positions in the Council.   

The Authority will look to “call off” resources as and 
when the need arises. 
 

38. New The Local Government Transparency Code 

Identifies what information must be published 
annually (para 53) and what is suggested (para 68)  

It does not appear that this information is currently published. 

As per 19 above, current referral levels are limited.    

 

 

 

 

Page 24

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/890748/Fraud_and_corruption_risks_in_local_government_procurement_FINAL.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/890748/Fraud_and_corruption_risks_in_local_government_procurement_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015/local-government-transparency-code-2015


P
age 25

A
genda Item

 9



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 27

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 33

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 34

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 35

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/10/press-release-psaa-announcement-of-procurement-outcome/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

•

•

o

o

o

o

•

•P
age 37

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition


P
age 38



 
  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer 

To: Audit & Governance 

Subject: Revision to Financial Procedures 

Date: 17th January 2023 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
To report on proposed changes to the Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure rules. 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 The Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure rules were last amended and approved 

by Full Council on the 1st February 2021.   The Council aims to update its Financial   and 
Contract Procedure rules at least every two/three years.   

   
2. REPORT 
 

The proposed revisions reflect amendments to consider the impact of inflation, there being no 
adjustment to financial limits since 2016.  Other amendments reflects changes to posts, and 
procurement changes arising from the UK leaving the European Union.  The aim in proposing 
these amendments is to strike a balance between oversight and control  against operational 
efficiency. 
 
The following are suggested changes for consideration by members. 
 
Section 3 - Page 8 
 

Current Wording 
 

Total Value ex VAT Quotations / Tendering for Goods 
and Services 

Short listing 

Up to £7,500 A minimum of one quotation, but 
good practice to seek most 
favourable prices and terms 

Operational Manager 
or Designated Officer 

£7,500 - £50,000 A minimum of three written 
quotations 
 
Where practical the Council’s E-
Procurement portal (Pro Contract) 
should be used to solicit quotations 

Operational Manager 
or Designated Officer 

 
  

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



 
  

Suggested Wording 
 

Total Value ex VAT Quotations / Tendering for Goods 
and Services 

Short listing 

Up to £10,000 A minimum of one quotation, but 
good practice to seek most 
favourable prices and terms 

Operational Manager 
or Designated Officer 

£10,001 - £50,000 A minimum of three written 
quotations 
 
Where practical the Council’s E-
Procurement portal (Pro Contract) 
should be used to solicit quotations 

Operational Manager 
or Designated Officer 

 

 
Rationale 

With inflation at historic highs and the current financial limits not being updated since 2016, it 
would be sensible to increase the threshold at which managers needs to formally seek three 
tenders. 
 
4.2.13 - Page 15 
 
Current wording 
 
Postal franking machines must be securely held and officers responsible will keep proper records of 
usage and certify the balance held in the machine at the 31st March each year. 
 
Suggested Wording 
Postal franking machines must be securely held 
 
Rationale 

There is no need for officers to record the balance held on the franking machines as at the 31st 
March as the potential balances are below the threshold level (£5,000) at which the Council posts 
year end accrual journals. 
 
Current wording 
  
6.1.7 - Page 39 

 
Current wording 
 
Shall provide each operational manager/member of SMT with a monthly budget report showing 
receipts and payments against budget. 
 
Suggested Wording 
Shall provide each operational manager/member of SMT with a quarterly budget report showing 
receipts and payments against budget. 
 
Rationale 

This aligns with the current quarterly QBR reporting to Internal Overview and Scrutiny, managers in 
practice can request an update on their budget position at any time. 
 
  

Page 40



 
  

6.7.7 - Page 48 

 
Current wording 
 
Assets valued at over £10,000 must be entered onto the Council Asset Register. 
 
Suggested Wording 
Assets valued at over £15,000 must be entered onto the Council Asset Register 
 
Rationale 

For accounting purposes Capital is currently defined as expenditure over £10,000 on an item 
with a life of over one year. Bulk purposes of similar assets can be combined to be treated as 
capital, e.g. purchase the bulk purchase of ICT equipment with individual values of less than 
£10k could be classed as capital. 
 
Full Council approval is required in order for all additions to the  Council’s approved capital 
program. The capital limits having not been raised for several years, consequently relatively 
minor equipment purchases now fall with Capital limits.  Capital expenditure is accounted for 
differently from day to day revenue expenditure, requiring 
 

 Creation of an entry on the Council’s asset register 

 Depreciation of asset over the life of the asset 

 Identification of funding for all capital items 
 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
n/a 
 
Financial Implications 
The financial implications are detailed within the report. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 
Risk Management 
None 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
The report is written with reference to the Council’s requirement to update its procedure 
rules on a regular basis. 

 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
None 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
  

Page 41



 
  

The Financial and Contract procedures as amended are a measured update reflecting 
the changing environment in which the Council operates. 

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 It is recommended that: 
 

a) Members recommend that the revised revisions to the Finance and Contract Procedures 
rules to Full Council for approval 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 09/01/2022 

Officers Consulted – Chief Executive, Senior Solicitor and 
Monitoring Officer, Economy & Planning Manager 

 Contact Officer: David Heyes 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2022/23 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycl

e 8 

  19/07/2022  25/10/2022  17/01/2023 04/04/2023  
         

        

Audit 
Committee 

    
  

 
 

Risk 
Management 

 Corporate Risk  
Corporate Risk 

Register 
 Cyber Security Corporate Risk 

 

Internal Audit 

 
Audit Reports 

issued 
 

Audit Reports 
issued 

 Audit Reports Issued 
 

Audit Reports 
Issued 

 

 

   
Charter & 
Strategy 

 
Progress with agreed 

Audit Actions 
 

 

     Annual Fraud report  
 

        
 

Accounts 

 
Draft statement of 

Accounts 
 Annual Report  

Preparation for Annual 
Accounts 

Contract Waivers 
 

 
Contract Waivers 

annual report 
 

Audit Findings 
Report 

 Update on 

appointment of 
External Auditors 

 

 

    
 Update of finance 

Contract Procedure 

Rules 

 
 

        

External 
Audit 

 
Annual Accounts 

findings report 
 

Letter of 
Representation 

 Update Report 
Update Report 

 

   

Update on 

PSSA 
appointment of 

external auditors 

  
External Audit 

Plan 

 

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 11


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2022
	7 Audit Reports Issued
	8 Counter Fraud and Resilience Assessment Report
	9 Audit Process Report and Sector Update
	Slide 1: Torridge District Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress at January 2023
	Slide 5: Progress at January 2023 (cont.)  
	Slide 6: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 7: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 8: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 9: Sector Update
	Slide 10: Audit Market Developments
	Slide 11: Audit Market Developments (continued)
	Slide 12: Grant Thornton – Nearly 60 councils at risk of ‘running out of money’ next year
	Slide 13: Audit Committees: Practical Guidance For Local Authorities And Police – CIPFA 
	Slide 14

	10 Revision to Financial Procedures
	11 Forward Plan

